

Transcript of Andrew Kerr's handwritten notes on
Edinburgh's traditional street lighting.
1. Oil lighting in Edinburgh. 
A public lamplighter was first employed in the Old Town in 1701 and by 1761 140 lamps were maintained by the Corporation. Swarbreck's print of High School Wynd (1837) shows some of these, converted to gas. Link to copy of print
In the New Town, the first lamps were either on irons projecting from the wall, as in the Old Town, or as simple posts, possibly wooden, attached to the railings. None of these now survive. Some proprietors put up their own lamps, however. In Charlotte Square and York Place a wrought iron standard (1800) was common and this design has been copied by the Corporation and used in other streets. In Heriot Row a large cast standard (1810) was put up privately in front of many of the houses, and in Queen Street a different, though similar design was used. This later design was also used a little later in Ann Street and Howard Place, where the top half of it can be seen mounted on the garden walls. It can also be seen at 47 Northumberland Street, which was built for John Morison, W.S., one of the Trustees for the creditors of David Stewart, on whose lands part of the New Town was built. This standard is the only original still to be found in the street and it was probably the only standard to be erected privately. 
All but a dozen or so of these private still survive in the New Town, though many have lost their "link horns", used to extinguish the link boy's torch when he had escorted someone to the house. Most of the wrought iron standards and some of the castings originally had link horns. 
In 1819, the Committee of Commissioners of Police for the Lighting Department began to put up cast iron standards at public expense. Although in the first year these cost 26/- each, John Anderson of the Leith Walk Foundry offered to supply them for 14/6 in 1820 and this offer was accepted. 
These cast standards were put up in very large numbers in the 1820's , and wherever one was put up two square holes were made in the stone at the foot of the railings, about six inches apart. Many of these square holes can be seen in Northumberland Street and some of the new standards have been fitted into them.
Only five standards of the 1819 design still survive in Edinburgh, one in George Street, one in Stafford Street, one at the Advocates’ Library and two in York Place. One of the latter was borrowed and used as a pattern for the new standards in Northumberland Street.
The original lamps had two cotton wicks and were filled daily with sufficient Greenland whale oil to enable then to burn until 3 am. Estimating the correct quantity of oil was very difficult and many of the lamps went out too early. The glass globes did not have a hole in the bottom, unlike later gas globes and the modern perspex reproductions in the street
2. The Coming of Gas
Gas street lighting was first demonstrated in London, in 1807, and by 1823 215 miles of London Streets had been lit by gas.
Lighting the North Bridge by gas was proposed in 1818 and the scheme, using 18 simple pillars, was completed in the following year. The High Street between the Bridges and Parliament Square was lit in March 1820 by converting the existing oil lamps, and this was the method generally used in the New Town. 
In the New Town, however, new gas lamp standards were put up. The first design used was intended to be mounted on the railings, but it was in fact invariably mounted on the pavement, supported by a "pall stone" or bollard. It was very similar to the 1819 design of oil lamp standard. The lantern on top of the standard was four-sided and was embellished with a gilded tin ball. The new standards quickly spread throughout the New Town. Northumberland Street being dealt with in 1825, and the oil lamp standards (apart from privately owned standards such as at No. 47) being removed. Shepherd's print of St. Stephen's Church (1830) shows new gas lamps on the right and an older oil lamp on the left.
Copyrighted Picture – Shepherd’s print – St Stephen’s Church 1830


This first design gave way, however, to a fluted cast iron pillar from 1827, when the best of several designs was selected by William Burn the architect. Princes Street was relit with the new fluted pillars in 1830. The early four-sided lantern had proved to be expensive to maintain and the glass globe was reverted to, with a tall chimney on top and the gas pipe entering through a hole in the bottom. 
Incandescent mantles were invented in 1885 and by 1895 were reasonably cheap. In Edinburgh, incandescent mantles, in the four-sided lanterns we all remember, were fitted between 1900 and 1907, and in all new lamps thereafter.

3. The New Lamps. 
Railing mounted lamps were first suggested in the Association's Conservation Report, which was published in October 1968, and the Lighting Engineer was first asked to consider whether they could be provided in January 1969. Negotiations with the Corporation took place throughout the year, and on 15th January 1970 a deputation from the Association addressed the Corporation and explained that residents offered to contribute to the proposed scheme by erecting the lamp standards, leaving the Corporation to fit the lanterns and arrange the electricity supply. This offer was accepted, and residents were asked to contribute. 46 residents and firms in the Street have contributed so far, and although the final cost of each standard has not yet been ascertained it is clear that there will be enough in the lighting fund to meet the whole cost. In addition, the Historic Buildings Council has provisionally offered £200. The association is extremely grateful to the Corporation for agreeing to the scheme and to the Lighting Engineer for his help in overseeing many difficulties. 
The new lamps were lit for the first time at 10.20 p.m. on Friday, 9th July 1971. 

Other sources of information:
Edinburgh World Heritage: 	A History of Street Lighting in the old and new towns of 
Edinburgh World heritage site.

